
Meeting Minutes SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, May 4th, 2010.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




John Bernard, Vice-Chairperson 



Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 




Steven Kessler, Board Member 



Ivan Kline, Board Member




Susan Todd, Board Member (absent)



Robert Foley, Board Member 


ALSO PRESENT:




Edward Vergano, Department of Technical Services 




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney




Mr. Jeff Rothfeder, CAC member 



Chris Kehoe, Planning Department  

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there will be no changes to the agenda tonight.


*



*



*

ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF MARCH 2, 2010
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked can I have a motion for the adoption of the minutes of the March meeting?
So moved, seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question I have some corrections on the minutes.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
RESOLUTION

PB 11-09    a.
Application of Gyrodyne Company of America for a Special Permit, Amended Site Development Plan approval and a Wetland Permit and a Tree Removal Permit for a new paved turnaround area with two (2) handicapped parking spaces and an additional 52 parking spaces at the Cortlandt Medical Center located at 1985 Crompond Road as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plan Application” prepared by Calvin Black, P.E. latest revision dated January 22, 2010 (see prior PB 13-02).

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairperson I move that we adopt resolution 29-10 with the one important condition I’d like to note that the applicant required to go to the Zoning Board of Appeals to get a parking Variance with a minimum of 175 parking spaces. 
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 


*



*



*

PUBLIC HEARINGS (ADJOURNED)

PB 10-06    a.
Public Hearing: Application of Sammy Musa Eljamal of Best Rent Properties for Amended Site Development Plan approval and for Tree Removal and Wetland Permits for the construction of a new access drive on the south side of the site and for a proposed 1,728 sq. ft. convenience store and a 1,200 sq. ft. addition to the car wash at the existing gas station/car wash located on the south west corner of Route 6 and the Cortlandt Town Center Access Drive as shown on a 1 page drawing entitled “Site Plan, Proposed Site Improvements” prepared by Bohler Engineering, P.C. latest revision dated August 24, 2009 (see prior PB 25-90 & 42-94).

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have attempted to be in touch with this particular applicant and they have generally been unresponsive right up until this very night.  We’re thinking we would adjourn this hearing.  Is there anybody here from the applicant to speak for this application?  We are going to adjourn this until September and wait an update from the applicant.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we adjourn this to our September meeting, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 1-07      b.
Public Hearing: Application of Mark Giordano, for the property of Ruth Cohen, for Preliminary Plat approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 6 lot major subdivision of  a 23.4 acre parcel of land located on the south side of Upland Lane, south of Mt. Airy Road, as shown on a  drawing entitled “Alternate Layout “A” Preliminary Plat,  Proposed Subdivision of Upland Estates” , and “Alternate Layout “A” Tree Preservation Plan”, latest revision dated August 20, 2009, and “Watershed Map” dated August 19, 2009 all prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. and a drawing entitled “Landscape Plan for the Development, Upland Estates” prepared by Tim Miller Associates, Inc. dated August 20, 2009.


Mr. John Klarl stated I recuse myself.
Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chair I’m recused.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it’s our understanding Madame Chairperson that you’re going to be receiving a report this evening from your special counsel in connection with the road issue that we fully briefed and provided all the back-up documentation that we could get concerning title and substantiating our client’s ability to improve Upland Drive.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have received the reports from our counsel Karl Lodes who is here on my right and we are prepared to move forward with the application but I did want our attorney to talk to a couple of issues that have been raised in executive session. 

Mr. Karl Lodes stated I have provided the Board with an opinion in which I have agreed with the applicant’s position and that the applicant has the right to improve this right-of-way to provide safe access to the lots that are on that road.  The only issue that I had which I’ve explained to the Board was a claim by Lee and Karen Streisfeld-Leitner that the existing right-of-way as it is currently constituted actually infringes on their property and so the Board, and I hope I can speak for the Board, would like to be provided with proof from the applicant either by way of a survey or some other proof that that is not the case, that it is not actually infringing on their property. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I think their position, just to be clear, was that that is true and that the proposed widening of the road would then further infringe on their property in a sense be a trespass on their property.  

Mr. Karl Lodes stated I agree as stated. 

Mr. David Steinmetz asked have you made a determination, Brad you can correct me if I’m wrong, on this particular lot have you made a determination Mr. Lodes whether that particular property owner owns to the center line of Upland to the extent to which Upland would already be technically on their property and we would have a right to traverse it and to the extent we would have the right to traverse it a right to improve.

Mr. Karl Lodes responded I have not made that determination because of the survey issue, but I have in effect agreed with your position.  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated understood so we will consult, members of the Board, with our surveyor.  We will go back to our title company and we will review this specific issue on this specific property as to where the full points of its leaps and bounds are and where that is relative to Upland and where that is relative to our engineer’s proposed redesign or upgrade of that roadway.  Are we going to receive a copy of Mr. Lodes’ opinion?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I don’t believe so, no.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it was a privileged and confidential memorandum to the Board. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I just thought that that should be stated for the record so the public is aware that we haven’t received this and I gather the public has not either?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded no the public has not.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I also think it should be clear there’s a distinction, as I’m sure you’re aware between the legal issue and the planning issues that the Planning Board has to still deal with as to whether what you propose to do is good from a planning perspective. 

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I’m very well aware we couldn’t even get to some of those issues.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated exactly.

Mr. David Steinmetz continued because your Board stopped us at the point of determining a legal issue that we had told you on day one we believed we had the right to do.  We appreciate the fact that Mr. Lodes worked expeditiously and was able to reach a conclusion. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re at a point where we’ve decided we would continue, as I said earlier, continue the public hearings.  We know that there are people from the area who are in the audience tonight and probably would grant you the permission to come up and speak because it is technically a public hearing.  We felt that we probably should wait until June 1st and re-open the hearings at that point because we had not advertised that we were doing such so unless there’s somebody who has a pressing situation here and has to be here tonight and say something we would rather have a motion to re-institute the hearings as of next month, June 1st. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Madame Chair just so you know we don’t even have our full team here this evening because we knew tonight was going to be certainly focused on the roadway.  We have no objection to the Board putting it over to June.  The only thing that I would mention is that we did attempt to respond to a number of the issues and I would remind the Board also that you had taken testimony from the neighbors both verbally and in writing on a host of issues which we have already heard and are aware that we’re going to need to address. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody who feels that they need to come up and speak tonight?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn this public hearing to our next meeting on June 1st, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
Mr. David Steinmetz stated before Mr. Lodes leaves – I certainly don’t want to infringe upon his time and require or request that he come back at the June or July meeting.  To the extent that we have a very specific and I think a technical issue that we’ve been asked to address, Madame Chair, I would request permission to correspond with Mr. Lodes and I would ask for him to correspond in response so that if there’s a need to bring him back certainly that would be done but if there’s no need to do so I see no reason to insist that he return at the June meeting.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think we can grant you whatever privileges you would ordinarily have with our regular attorney.  I don’t see any reason why we shouldn’t.

Mr. Karl Lodes responded I will be here on June 1st anyway.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we have no attorney on this case and, as you know, every case has an attorney advising us so he’s our counsel.

Ms. Joann Whalen stated I’m the attorney for the Laner’s and a resident of Upland Lane.  In the event that there’s correspondence between the parties, on behalf of the residents I would like to get the communication as well.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded no problem.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated absolutely, if it’s between the attorneys there’s obviously no privilege and it’s a public document.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated whatever we have always done as part of our public hearing process it will continue to be done.



*



*



*

PUBLIC HEARING (NEW)
PB 24-06    a.
Public Hearing: Application and Draft Environmental Impact Statement dated February 5, 2010 of Ace Sport Realty Holding Corp., c/o Phillip Hersh, for Site Development Plan approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for two retail/office buildings totaling approximately 27,400 sq. ft. located on a 2.08 acre parcel on the north side of Route 6 at the intersection with the Bear Mountain Parkway and Jacobs Hill Road as shown on a 7 page set of drawings entitled “Retail/Office Buildings Main Street Plaza” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated May 19, 2008.

Mr. Frederick Wells presented himself to the Board and stated from Tim Miller Associates.  I’ve heard the Environmental Impact Statement and what I can do is give a brief overview of where we are now.  It’s been a while since we’ve been before the Board.  Not a whole lot has changed but things got tweaked in the process and I’d like also for Art Seckler the architect to present the building.  There’s a rendering in the EIS but we can talk about that a little bit.  As explained this is a slightly over 2 acre parcel of land.  Can I ask how many people in the audience are here for this application?   Two acre parcel on Route 6.  Route 6 is on the bottom of the screen here, horizontally Jacobs Hill Road is going up vertically.  This project is proposed for access off of Jacobs Hill Road only.  The Bear Mountain Parkway is on the right hand side of the project and the Jacobs Hill condominiums is north of the project.  What’s proposed are 2 office retail buildings, 2 story buildings approximately 27,400 square feet.  They are both served by water and sewer.  Right now the site has a single-family residence.  It’s been on the property for years and most of the property is developed in lawn and managed as lawn.  There’s a little bit of woods at the north end and there’s woods off site between the property and the Bear Mountain Parkway.  At the south end of the site there’s a couple depressions which are actually man-made storm water facilities but they have wetland vegetation so they were designated as wetlands by the Town.  The project, as I said, is 2 buildings.  They are designed to be separate in that the parking for each building is distinct from the parking for the other building and the access points from the parking go into the upper and lower sides of the building.  Because of the slope of the site there’s a retaining wall proposed between the two buildings so they’re essentially two separate entities in terms of access, etc.  The proposal is to obviously remove the house that’s there and provide this project to service unknown tenants at this time but it will be a mix of tenants in retail on the first floor, offices on the second floors.  The project, as you see, is proposed to be landscaped.  There’s lighting on the site.  There’s a little bit of fencing on the side towards the Bear Mountain Parkway.  Everything is accessible in terms of handicap accessibility and the design is intended to be conforming with Zoning.  Right now I’d like to explain briefly for the audience what we’re here for.  It’s a hearing on the draft Environmental Impact Statement which is a document that’s been submitted to the Board and published which evaluates the various environmental impacts of issues relating to the project including: traffic and the small wetlands, and clearing, moving of soil, land use and Zoning questions, basically trying to run the gamut to explain what issues might be relevant to this project.  The purpose here is for us to hear comments from the public and they will be responded to in writing in a Final Impact Statement which will be presented to this Board for review and acceptance.  No approvals will happen in that process until we’re through the environmental review process and the Board has adopted a findings statement.  I don’t see Mr. Seckler here.  I was going to ask him to present the building but what I will do is show it up on the building here and then I can answer questions or I’ll sit down and listen to comments.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated when you’re done with your – we will invite the residents up to…

Mr. Frederick Wells continued this is the rendering that’s in the EIS and it is view generally looking north up Jacobs Hill Road and the design is proposed to step up the hill side with the two buildings at slightly different elevations so they take advantage of the grade and the idea is to try to separate from Route 6 for some green space and there’s a fairly large front setback there and as well as a wider than normal right-of-way which is proposed to stay green.  I’m ready to hear comments or answer questions.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you can put the mike back and what we’ll do is we’ll call up area residents in that local area who wish to speak.  This is a public hearing and you’re invited to come up and make your concerns or issues known. 
Ms. Susan Aubry presented herself to the Board and stated I live at 2308 Jacobs Hill Road.  I have a condominium at Woodcrest at Jacobs Hill which is north up the hill from the planned new development.  I’m president of the Board of Managers at the condominiums and we have 57 condos there and probably 57 residents are very concerned about this development.  1)  Being a long term resident of Peekskill and now of Cortlandt Manor one of the things that really is concerning us is that we have so many empty store fronts in Peekskill and in the Town of Cortlandt that why would we want to build – that why would the Board consider approving another development, stores, or retail shops on Route 6 when in fact we have so many on the other side that are vacant?  That’s a concern to us.  Are we going to have empty buildings there?  Particularly now during this very vital economic time we don’t see viable tenants coming into this particular area.  Second of all, we’re worried about the traffic.  We’re worried about the exit or the entrance and exit out of the new development which is just below our entrance, the only entrance we have to get up to Woodcrest to Jacobs Hill.  On the top of the hill we have rentals.  We do have the manager of the rentals here tonight also.  I don’t know how many rentals are there.  Cindy? So, you’re looking at 102 families in the rentals and 57 residents in the condo development.  We are very concerned that this particular development, although it looks very pretty, will remain totally vacant and will create a lot of problems.  Environmentally, we’re going to be taking down our greenery, traffic-wise and most important, in my estimation, that we will have empty buildings like we have on the opposite side where King Buffer is.  There are several empty stores.  There are empty stores all over Route 6.  Route 6 is a problem.  We can’t even drive down Route 6 from the end of October until January 1st so we’re going to add to the problem if the Board decides that this is something that’s needed.  I really ask the Board to take into your consideration that this is a residential area and that it really will be, I think, hazardous and unsightly to a really pretty community.  I think the residents certainly don’t want to see any more empty stores on Route 6. 
Ms. Gail Aluisio presented herself and stated I live at 2305 Jacobs Hill Road.  Can you explain this because I’m sitting here and I don’t know what view this is?

Mr. Frederick Wells responded the view was taken from across Route 6.  I don’t recall the name of the street.

Mr. John Klarl stated Parkway Place.

Mr. Frederick Wells continued we’re looking directly up Jacobs Hill Road with Pike Plaza on the left and the proposed buildings are on the right. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated King Buffet’s on the left.

Ms. Aluisio asked do you have any drawing that shows where your buildings are in relation to the condos?

Mr. Robert Foley asked while you’re looking, Madam, the DEIS is available I’m not sure is it Chris?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s on the Town’s website as well as in our office.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the Town’s website and there’s a book in the office which may show what you’re asking. 

Mr. Frederick Wells stated the site is outlined in white.

Ms. Aluisio asked also, is there going to be blasting?

Mr. Frederick Wells responded yes, there is rock removal.  We’re not sure whether it needs to be blasted or not but there are provisions in the EIS for blasting or alternate methods for rock removal.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated speaking of blasting before you continue I think I read somewhere, maybe I’m mistaken, that there would possibly be blasting to create some kind of pads that are 18 feet down.  Did I read that or am I mistaken?

Mr. Frederick Wells responded there’s excavation needed at the back side of each of the buildings.  In other words a cut into the hillside and I think the highest or the deepest cut is around 18 feet I believe.

Ms. Loretta Taylor reiterated 18 feet.

Ms. Aluisio stated from my point-of-view I’m worried about the amount of traffic at that intersection.  I’m not sure how many parking spaces you plan on putting in there.  In the DEIS report is the traffic study in there?

Mr. Frederick Wells responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anyone else who wishes to come up?  Did Mr. Seckler come?  Did you have anything else you need to say at this point?

Mr. Frederick Wells responded no I did receive a copy from Chris the County Planning’s comments which just came today.  We’ll take a look at those and possibly talk about them next time.  I understand you want to hold this over.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we are because we just got information ourselves and we haven’t even had time to read it. 

Mr. Frederick Wells stated I would like, if we could, at the next meeting is to get the Board’s reaction to the Planning’s comments so we get a sense of whether that’s a direction that the Board wants us to go or not.  Also, we ask that you ask that staff have comments for the next meeting.  That would be helpful for us to proceed. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we will do as much as we can to accommodate you.  

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn this public hearing to our June 1st meeting, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m saying this to the residents in the area, if there are other people who you know of who need to be here next time, I would suggest that you get them out here and let them know that they can speak because it would be a shame to have to close hearings and people who wanted to speak did not speak.  This is your opportunity, in part anyway, to get your feelings on the record.  You will also have a comment period which you can write letters for a brief period of time once the hearings are closed but this doesn’t last forever so make sure that people are out and are aware and prepared to speak.

Mr. Robert Foley stated also for the benefit of the public besides the book and the DEIS being available in the Planning office, the newer correspondence, today’s correspondence that was just mentioned from the County with a proposal to move one of the buildings forward would also be available there. 



*



*



*

OLD BUSINESS 
PB 13-05    a.
Application and Final Environmental Impact Statement latest revision dated January 14, 2010 by  Kirquel Development Ltd. for Preliminary Plat Approval and Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for a 22 lot major subdivision of 52.78 acres of property located on the west side of Lexington Ave. and at the south end of Mill Court as shown on a 15 page set of drawings entitled “Subdivision Site Development for Residences at Mill Court Crossing” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated July 8, 2009 and on drawings entitled “Preliminary Landscape Plan” and “Stone Wall Plan” both prepared by Tim Miller Associates, Inc., dated July 21, 2009.
Mr. Peter Lynch stated I represent Mike Sheber.  I was at the workshop and I know that the question was raised about whether or not we consent to extend the time to vote on this to July.  We do and we understand that the Board is evaluating the project.  We’re really just here to be available for any questions you may have.  
Mr. John Klarl stated specifically Mr. Lynch we’d like to adjourn it to the day after the July meeting.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded that’s fine. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated which is July 8th.  The meeting is July 7th.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there members of the Board at this point who wanted to put some comments on the table?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you want to discuss the memo?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, we did get the memo from staff so feel free to chime in at this point. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I think the special meeting that we had was very helpful and certain questions still remained, specifically in referring to the summary memo that was issued by our staff on this.  I don’t know if you have a copy of it?
Mr. Peter Lynch responded I do not.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked is that available to them?  I think summarizes very clearly what was the discussion at that meeting.  It was grouped into three basic sections: traffic, drainage and biodiversity and steep slopes.  We had differing opinions from various consultants at this meeting.  In terms of the traffic issues as stated here, it appeared to me that the data that was used in the analysis was not current and that there was more current data that would be available and should be used.  The big thing that really made an impression on me there were no ATR data available.  I couldn’t understand why there wouldn’t be any.  I guess it was just human traffic counts by a person rather than an automatic traffic – they were manual traffic counts.  Given that this is a very sensitive area and given that a majority of the public’s concerns were of the traffic situation there on Mill Court and Red Mill Road and not withstanding the – I’m going to call it marginalization – that the applicant tried to make of “well, it’s only a little bit of traffic that we’re adding here.  How could that make a big difference?”  I don’t think that’s a criteria for whether or not we should further analyze the data or not because a little bit of traffic here, a little bit of traffic there and before you know it you’re talking about a lot of traffic.  If each applicant came before us and just talked about their impact if it’s a small impact it’s an additive impact and we have to look at the bigger picture here.  I’m in favor of furthering the traffic study to include the more current data and to include some ATR data that was discussed at the work session.  In terms of the drainage I felt convinced that the surface and the ground water from Mill Court area was not a contributor to drainage problem in the Mountain View lane area.  I felt that the applicant did describe the use of dry wells throughout the project and that would take care of most of the drainage.  I think that, I’m not speaking for the Board in terms of my mind, I think that would – the Mountain View drainage system as it states here should be evaluated but I felt that the drainage was less than an issue than the traffic and the biodiversity.  In terms of biodiversity corridors were talked about.  This biodiversity corridor was mentioned by Steve Coleman, our consultant, and there were a couple of houses that were located adjacent to that that he felt were part of that biodiversity corridor.  As my opinion that those houses should be – and in fact I think they’re #17 and #18, I’m not sure of all the lot numbers I don’t have the drawing in front of me right now, should be eliminated.  In terms of the fact that they’re not only in the corridor but they’re also in a steep slopes area and they seem to be carved out enough so that they miss many of the more steeper slopes over 20% or 30% and that they just barely missed it but it was intentionally carved out that way and I felt that it would be more natural to leave that area as part of the corridor and eliminate those houses to avoid the disturbance on the steep slopes in that area.  It states here that the recommendations that Mr. Coleman had were consistent with the recommendations contained in the ’05 biodiversity report and the Town Planning consultant expressed concerns at 12, 13, 17, and 18 would have adverse impact in the steep slopes.  I’d like the applicant to take a look at eliminating at least some of those lots in this application.  That’s my interpretation of how the meeting went.  I’m sure that other people have their own take on the result.

Mr. Peter Lynch stated may I just say Mr. Bianchi, we did send a letter down yesterday via e-mail.  I don’t know if you’ve gotten it yet but we’ve asked you to take a look at the report that Mr. Coleman made in 2005 and what we pointed out is that when he made his recommendations in 2005 all of the recommendations that he made we actually incorporated into the project revisions.  We just ask you to take a look at that before you…

Mr. Steven Kessler responded we did receive that letter.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I did not read that yet. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated just to comment on that.  You certainly made improvements along the lines of what he wrote about.  I don’t believe there’s something in his initial report that you could cite to that would say if you did exactly what you are now doing this would have no impact. 
Mr. Peter Lynch responded that’s true.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated you spend a lot of time debating to what extent did you respond to what he said.  I think this Board has to have more of a concern at the end of the day is are you having still some adverse impact that we can further mitigate and we have Mr. Coleman’s very clearly stated opinion to that affect.  At least in my mind, that to me is more important to getting findings statements than did you cover 80% or 90% or 60% of what he recommended back in 2005?

Mr. Peter Lynch stated the point we’re simply trying to point out is that the comments were made and taken to heart and meaningfully used to make the projects revisions that we did.  It certainly doesn’t close the door on the issue but we just wanted to bring it to your attention that when Mr. Coleman’s comments were made prior they were taken to heart.  It’s just that our position is that we pointed out in the letter we think we’ve achieved this suitable balance at this point but you’re right, the issue is not closed but we did want to bring that to your attention. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated to echo some of what Tom said, at least in my own view, I think 17 and 18 have always been problematic because of the slopes issues and I think even without the further issue of the biodiversity corridor that Mr. Coleman raised, I think just on the face of our Steep Slopes Ordinance you can’t really justify lots 17 and 18.  You’re going through a greater than 30% slope area there and obviously I know why because you want to add 2 houses in and if you’re entire parcel or the area where 17 and 18 were you’d have a pretty good argument I think to get a driveway through there to at least get a lot down there to make otherwise you have no use of your property but 17 and 18 are part of a larger parcel.  I think the way our Ordinance is worded, at least in my mind, I don’t think you can pass muster to justify use of that area to justify the disturbance.  I think obviously there was some difference of opinion on the extent of the impact that lots 12 and 13 will have with the biodiversity issues but in my mind it’s an important consideration and certainly is a matter of common sense just from what we have in front of us it would certainly seem to be an improvement to also eliminate 12 and 13 in particular.  I think lot 1 may seem to be at least in my mind a little less significant but that’s where my thinking is upon following the special meeting and going back through some of the materials.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded I would agree if you were looking at the project simply from the environmental factor.  Sure, it does make sense but we’re just asking you to take a look on balance that the economic factors are also meaningful and the loss of here for example Ivan is 4 lots is a significant economic impact, especially in context of the fact that the minimum of the number lots we had initially was 27 and we’re down now to the lots we have is 21.  Consequently, we feel that we’d ask for this Board to consider the economic impacts on an equal balance with the environmental ones because we’re talking about a suitable balance and that’s what we thought we achieved.  Certainly, we understand the environmental comment but the loss of 4 lots would be an economic disaster for the applicant.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I just want to correct one of the things that I said, the environmental corridor was the subject of lots were 12 and 13 for that which I was also agreeing for the recommendation that those 2 be eliminated.  The 17 and 18 lots were more of a subject of just a steep slopes.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I agree. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but I do think that his point was that they added to or enhanced the corridor that we’re talking about even so. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded yes. 

Mr. John Bernard stated personally, lots 17 and 18 I’ve always thought when I first looked at this project that those were throw away lots that they had been placed there specifically to be thrown away.  They’re in a very low area.  They’re barely a foot above the head waters of the major wetland on that property.  You have a very steep slope to access those lots.  I tried to visualize the 2 homes there with some amount of lawn that people typically have around the house and I tried to picture that in my mind at the upper end of this large wetland and it just does not compute.  I’m really adamantly opposed to those 2 lots.  As to Coleman’s recommendations of the elimination of I believe it was 4 lots of the 16 on the other side of the project off Mill Court, I think there probably is a very good case for the elimination of some if not all of those 4 lots.  I was not, as you know from our last meeting, I’m not at all impressed by the environmental expertise that was brought to bear in the DEIS and the FEIS, less than impressed, less than happy about it.  I think that’s enough said. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I thought the special meeting was somewhat productive.  Again, I wasn’t totally happy with, nor was the applicant I’m sure as you saw, but I agree with Mr. Coleman’s memo on the widening of the biodiversity corridor.  I believe the 3 lots up there off the cul-de-sac would satisfy that and also his mentions of a wider apron around some of the existing homes on the cul-de-sac to provide more of a buffer or a corridor.  Also, particularly lots 17 and 18 as Ivan and John and Tom have mentioned, I’ve never liked those.  Originally there were 3 and if you really know that area other than looking at the site plans and the pull outs and so forth, during the high rain period there is a real drainage problem there on the homes that face on Red Mill and back off on where you’re proposing the 2 homes of 17 and 18.  Not only the steep slopes impact in getting down to those homes but then the drainage run-off is a problem and I’m not sure your plan solves that.  I do not like 17 and 18.  On the Mountain View Road Mr. Wegner’s plan on the Mountain View Road drainage problems, I think that’s a step in the right direction but I’m not the engineer on it.  I think Mr. Vergano is getting together with the 2 or 3 homeowners up there, at least one of them, where this drainage pipe would impact their property to explain it a little better and how it may work and so forth.  I’m pleased with that.  On the traffic counts, I’m glad that there will be a further study and analysis.  I never agreed that – since day one I thought that it needed the ATR counts, not just the manual and the time lapse between the ’07 building completion up until now three years later.  I think it’s important to get a more updated analysis with complete data, more days included for the study including a weekend day for a longer period of time, not just two or three days or whatever the original TRC study was. I’m pleased with that possibility.  On the school bus access issue, I know that there is a later letter after Mr. Dempsey met with Mr. Kales or these Lakeland School Transportation officials.  After they had submitted a letter, I believe after the April meeting, and then I did read and heard Mr. Dempsey’s report at the April 28th meeting, however, I don’t have that letter in front of me right now – it seems that there could still be an additional bus run or using of a van if the larger busses would be bottoming out on Mill Court whether they’re coming down Mill Court onto Red Mill or going up.   That doesn’t seem to be answered in the letter from Mr. Dempsey.  That’s still not clear to me.  I understand about the possible curb cut improvements for the turning radius for the larger busses and everything if that comes about but it’s the bottoming out issue and then the extra bus issue if – because technically the Code or guidelines for Lakeland schools are elementary level students shouldn’t be walking more than a 10th of a mile to a safe bus stop and the middle to high school no more than a ¼ mile I believe.  I’m not sure what this latest letter is saying.  I would have an issue with that if they had to walk all the way down to the Red Mill stop the way it currently exists.  There’s in a letter from Yorktown which we just got today May 4th, I haven’t really digested it, in reference to I believe the right-of-way issue again.  I’ll reserve comment on that until I thoroughly read that letter.  Traffic is still the big issue with me as far as a more detailed comprehensive, and I don’t want to say believable traffic study is done.  I do appreciate the efforts at the last meeting and as we move forward on this. 
Mr. Peter Lynch asked would you still want a new traffic count if the project were reduced by the elimination of lots 1, 12, 13, 17 and 18?

Mr. Robert Foley responded I think so.  My issue had been the dating of the report, the time span in between and the way it was done.  I’m not sure on that because I don’t know if you’re talking about apples and oranges here.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked is that an offer?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded no it’s not.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked it’s hypothetical?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded it is because I just wanted to know because for example, I don’t know what the Board’s going to do here but if this Board was of the opinion – we’re going to talk about this after the meeting amongst ourselves but obviously it’s pretty clear that the Board members have expressed that lot 17 and 18 are a problem for you and there’s an issue of course with Mr. Coleman’s report relative to 12 and 13.  My question is this: if you’re asking us to go forward to do additional traffic studies even if you’re not willing to approve the project as is and you want further reductions in the number of lots that’s going to be an issue for us.  The other thing is that while the traffic study was done by TRC and it took the counts up to 2007 within the last month we had TRC issue another memo which we submitted to the Board that indicated that those traffic counts were still valid.  Our position is that the traffic study that we have is legitimate and it’s still viable. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I would like to see a new study also based on what one of the residents testified and this was a person who has some standing in analysis of reports like this and I think what he had to say had a lot of merit and it’s on the record in the minutes and so forth.  I do think that this would need another study.  Also, I think just a reduction of how ever many units there are other issues and impacts during the past few years with traffic through that corridor.  Other build outs in that area whether it’s adjacent or in the next Town nearby.  I think there have been other impacts if you factor in from 2007 until now, 2010. 

Mr. Peter Lynch continued that’s why we have the TRC issue that updated memo.  They are consulting experts. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I didn’t totally agree with what they were saying. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think for this evening we’re done.  I wanted to just put on the table here too that in an earlier memo to our staff the County’s Planning Board, I’m not sure that this came up at the meeting on the 28th but certainly they have still some concerns about the nature of the project and they’d like to see some additional mitigations in various areas.  Right off the bat they start with fair and affordable housing and the fact that you had offered these affordable units.  Are you still offering that?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded yes, three.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated their sense of this is that this Board needs to be very clear about affordable and how affordable they will be because there seems to be some confusion sometimes when people use that term ‘affordable’ and they’re talking about making – in terms of the County’s own standards that they have to meet those specific requirements.  I believe it’s 80% of the area median income.  This is something else that the Board has to take a look at when we are making our determinations.  They were referencing a couple of other things including things like sidewalks which were part of the original sustainable development study.  The fact that you need to create sidewalks along Lexington and you need to create sidewalks within the development to enhance the flow of pedestrian movement in the development itself.  The fact that “a portion of Lexington Avenue near the site contains a school, a senior home, a religious institution, and several Bee Line bus stops indicates that such sidewalks are needed now.”  In other words, not to be put off to some later date but that they should be incorporated into your project as we move along not thought about as some separate category to be done much later down the line.  They also had some concerns about sewer impacts and the fact that the amount of sewage flowing from the project down into the Peekskill Hollow treatment plant is much increased and they wanted you to sort of mitigate that and they had specific recommendations regarding that.  Storm water management they felt that you’re relying and I think this did come up at the meeting last week – that you’re relying too much on dry wells.  Have you seen this memo at all?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded yes, I have it in my hand.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated these are some of the other things that still are out there that we’re concerned about and we’ll be looking at as we move forward.

Mr. Peter Lynch stated one thing that I note on a positive feature from the Westchester County letter of April 16th is they write “the project has been substantially revised since our previous review.  We note that a number of the revisions take into account our previous comments.”  Again, I just want to bring that to the Board’s attention because in going through the process, getting comments were not disregarding but rather were incorporated to the extent that we thought we could in making it a meaningful SEQRA application.  I just wanted to bring that to your attention. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I absolutely read it and I actually highlighted it.  I’m aware of what they’re saying.  Truthfully, what we’re saying here on this Board is that even as we commend any applicant for making changes that improve the site and the overall development of the area we also still have to focus on those things that could be potential problems and ask that the applicant mitigate as many of them as possible.  We have a balance that we have to work with too.  We are very encouraged by any kind of improvement but at the same time we still have to keep our eye on the fact that there are still problems that have to be resolved.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I just wanted to clarify a point on the lots and Loretta, what she has just said prior to this, reminded me the lot 17 and 18 another reason why I feel they wouldn’t be viable is in the current plan there’d be septic supported and without sewers I don’t think for those two units I think you would need the sewers and that’s another reason why I would have a problem with septic there. 

Mr. Peter Lynch asked here’s another question that I have is that the sidewalk, the project did propose granting an easement for the sidewalks and of course we have to take into account the County comment that if you’re going to build this project that as proposed and it does have two lots on Lexington 17 and 18 as well as the three affordable lots on Lexington then the sidewalk becomes an issue.  My question is if 17 and 18 are not approved or approvable by this Board would this Board still be looking for sidewalks along Lexington?

Mr. Robert Foley responded good question. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that is a good question.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated you’d still have the three other affordable units up there.  We all know, as certainly Mr. Sheber knows the road is a very dangerous road the way it exists now people do walk on it.  There’s another reason on 17 and 18 I just thought of, I may have brought it up in the past if 17 or 18 are there with the way the driveway’s currently configured and coming out, even though it is moved down further away from the intersection, I still feel that with any future intersection improvements of Red Mill, Strawberry and Lexington those two homes there may complicate that with their driveway.  One other thing if I may, there’s been besides all the new input that’s been mentioned that we’ve been referring to, the County memo, your letters, Mr. Sheber’s, the Dempsey letter on traffic, TRC there is a resident’s letter of April 29th from a Nancy Young which is on the record here and besides the Yorktown letter which I also mentioned earlier.  

Mr. John Bernard stated originally when this application came before us, maybe I misheard, but I thought that part of the applicant’s desire was to build these homes in a green fashion with a fair amount of environmental sensitivity.  I’m guessing both for energy savings and also for marketability and at some point in the process of approvals that’s been dropped out.  Is that true?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded that is correct.

Mr. John Bernard asked and this is because of the cost of building green?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded yes. 

Mr. John Bernard continued without thinking about the desirability of the marketing side of it?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded I think it’s really driven by the change in the economic since this project started 5 or 6 years ago and now and just recognizing the cost factor. 

Mr. John Bernard stated I would suggest that you may want to take a second look at it because the increased costs are fairly well demonstrated to be 5% or less and going down every day, the differential in building green or not and using the available energy star components and lead components I think you probably are going to pay the same amount as far as cost but your marketability would be so much improved.  Just a thought. 

Mr. Peter Lynch responded we’ll take that into consideration.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff and bring this back to our June 1st meeting, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 9-09      b.
Application of Brookfield Resource Management Inc., for the property of 2114 APR, LLC, for Site Development Plan Approval, a Renewal of a Junkyard Special Permit and a Steep Slope Permit for a recycling facility for scrap metal from end-of-life vehicles, as well as tires, all fluids, batteries, mercury switches, and other recyclables  that are part of the vehicle and for recycling of other end-of-life durable goods that are primarily constructed of metal at a facility located at 2105 & 2109 Albany Post Road (Route 9A) as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Brookfield Resource Management” prepared by Nosek Engineering dated April 22, 2010 (see prior PB 35-06)
Mr. David Steinmetz stated I understand from your work session that you are aware that we’ve made a rather comprehensive submission of responses to the various issues and questions that have been raised by staff and by the Board.  The only thing that we have not given you at this point that we know we need to get to you is our traffic study and report.  It is being completed.  It was not done in time and we will have it for you at the earliest possible date.  What we were really hoping that we could try to discuss with you and try and accomplish, as you know, Mr. Malone has indicated from the outset a desire to try to improve esthetically the front façade of the property and by that I really mean the entrance, the fencing, the landscaping, and the signage.  As you know we have an ongoing operation, we have a current Special Permit which is though related to separate and apart from the application that we have before you.  We have provided you with a detail of the fence, of the proposed landscaping and of the sign and we would very much like to get those improvements for the benefit of the community.  I know the time and attention that Cortlandt has recently been spending on the Montrose area.  We would like to be permitted to do that.  To the extent that any of you have continuing concerns and issues that might come up along the way obviously you have the right to continue to make suggestions and potential modifications.  We think we have a recommendation of a very simple and Code-compliant improvement that would be a vast improvement to the community.  We’d hoped that you’d see that favorably and allow us to move forward with staff and get those improvements installed.  
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated during the work session we were thinking how we would handle this.  It isn’t so much that we want to put the cart before the horse because this is part of your application, technically speaking, but there is also another Permit out there that you are operating under so we felt maybe we could consider this as your attempt to beautify the front entrance of your junkyard and so you could do this under the Permit that you currently operate under and we don’t have to necessarily think of this as you’re doing this before we’ve actually approved this specific project.  Do you know what I’m saying?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I know exactly what you’re saying and I agree with you.  I just, like your Board determined during the pendency of this application, to grant the temporary extension of the existing Special Permit so to, we believe your Board has the authority to grant permission for this simple improvement associated with the ongoing operation.  

Mr. John Klarl stated with the existing Special Permit.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked John assume there were no new application and they just came in holding the Special Permit and made this application for the so-called esthetic improvements, could we grant that without getting to the public hearing, without holding a public hearing?

Mr. John Klarl responded generally we don’t do it…

Mr. Ivan Kline asked could we?

Mr. John Klarl responded it was the fence, the sign and the landscaping?  We could do it by motion.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I’m comfortable with the concept because to me this is really an improvement regardless of what happens with the application. 

Mr. John Klarl stated whether it be by motion or public hearing with an existing Special Permit you could entertain those three items: the fence, the sign, the landscaping.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I look at this and it’s certainly…

Mr. John Bernard asked but are we looking at when we look at these two elevations, which one are we looking at?

Mr. David Steinmetz stated as Mr. Nosek is going to show you, the top elevation is an existing condition, winter scene I guess there’s some snow in that photograph, but it’s the somewhat aged, to put it nicely, chain link fence that’s there with some degree of coloration on it and beneath it you have the proposed fence.  It’s 6 feet?

Mr. John Nosek responded it’s a 6 foot high fence but it sits on a 2 foot proposed blue stone base and this right here would be the blue stone base right here.  It’s very attractive, 6 foot high white cedar fence.  It’s concave so you see it kind of peeks and goes down and so forth.  It’s basically going to replace the existing fence that’s there now just along the frontage of Route 9A.  This is the existing fence right now.  It’s basically a fairly old chain link fence.

Mr. John Bernard stated the cedar fence in this photograph looks impervious.  Is that a completely solid cedar fence?  Is that the idea?  

Mr. John Nosek responded you can’t see through it.
Mr. John Bernard asked is this for reduction of sound?

Mr. John Nosek stated mainly aesthetics correct.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated [1:06 Inaudible]
Mr. John Bernard stated the aesthetics to me, and I’m not an architect, the aesthetics to me it looks like a concrete wall.  That’s what it looks like.  A concrete wall with texture.  In other words, there’s no daylight coming through that wall.  That’s the idea of it?

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the slats are sitting next to each other. There should be no daylight.

Mr. John Bernard asked would there be a problem having a more open fence?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded creating some daylight…

Mr. John Bernard stated I’m wondering, if it’s not for sound than there really shouldn’t be a downside to maybe a slightly different design.  I’ll leave that to the Architectural Review Committee.  That’s really a more proper venue.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Mr. Schwartz points out to me that your Code actually mandates and just so we’re all clear I’m reading from 307-61a4 sub ‘a’ that the facility shall be “entirely surrounded by a solid wall or opaque fence at least 8 feet in height.”  We sought to put that solid wall in the front here.  Historically, this facility has not had a solid wall or fence around its perimeter. 

Mr. John Bernard stated then I would hope that Architectural Review will be able to come up with a bit of some design elements to make it look less like a concrete wall.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I kind of have the same feeling.  I don’t think of it as a concrete wall, but you said it’s “white cedar” is it going to age at all?  It’s very white and it’s very long…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Loretta we’re not married to the color of the fence and we certainly could…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think a more natural kind of fencing. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think Architectural Review needs to really weigh on this.  This is too important. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated then with your Board’s permission, with Chris’s help, if we can submit this to Architectural Review and either appear before or get some comments back from them. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that would be fine. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated they usually do it via e-mail so I would need a pdf.  I can send hard copies but they prefer pdf.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we’ll pdf to you and maybe John, we’ll talk off line Chris about maybe giving them a few different choices of things to look at to address the various comments that we’ve heard from the Chair and Vice Chair.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked Dave is that at the exact same location as the existing fence?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded exact location the only thing that I would mention is the base of the wall, as Mr. Nosek explained is probably 2 feet wide in terms of the stone wall.  Currently you have a chain link fence sitting on a 3 or 4 inch area so it could move a couple of inches one way or the other but our goal is to keep the fence in the exact same place and have the base beneath it. 

Mr. John Bernard stated the other question that came up at the work session was traffic stacking up with trucks trying to get in.  During operating hours are the gates wide open?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I’ll let Mr. Nosek hit both the traffic stacking and also my understanding is there was a question about the width of the gate area.
Mr. John Nosek responded manual gate be open in the morning operating hours; 7 a.m., 8 a.m. I’m not sure the time.  8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. 

Mr. John Bernard stated as I recall the site there’s enough room inside that there shouldn’t be any stacking out in the roadway, that the vehicles will be able to come right in and there’s more than ample room to be inside the space.

Mr. John Nosek responded there’s plenty of room inside, big site, easily…

Mr. John Bernard stated it was a question that came. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated somewhat tangential to that particular issue is that somebody seemed to feel that there might not be enough room if the fence came all the way down to…

Mr. David Steinmetz responded we want to talk about that because we may not be aware of the fact that we’re actually improving the opening. 

Mr. John Nosek stated the proposed entrance you’ll see is fairly wide even though we’re not changing the curb cut, you’ll see that the actual entrance location is considerably wider to allow for truck traffic and so forth.  Our proposal is to bring the new fence up to that point.  I think the proposed plan makes access much easier.  

Mr. Ed Vergano asked the total height of the fence is 8 foot, correct?  A 6 foot fence, 6 foot 2.  We’re frantically checking our Code right now to make sure that that’s allowed in the front yard. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I don’t think it is.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I think it’s 6 foot.

Mr. Robert Foley stated unless it’s different for commercial property.  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it’s 8 feet under this section. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked for commercial?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated under the Special Permit for the junkyard.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded [inaudible71:48] for these types of facilities.  Just to underscore what John said so everybody’s clear, the actual curb cut for this existing facility is not being touched.  It’s currently a functioning curb cut.  None of the vehicles, as you’ll see from the traffic report, will change.  The same types of trucks will come in there tomorrow as were in there today.  We’re not touching the curb cut we therefore do not need a DOT Permit to change the curb cut.  All we’re doing is improving the driveway that leads to the curb cut to just promote a better movement through there.  As John explained to you the fence will match up to that new driveway.  Certainly, should you or your consultants see any issue with that I’m sure we’ll hear about that. 
Mr. Ed Vergano stated for the record we did find it in our Special Permit section under ‘junkyard’ 8 foot is allowed as a minimum height of the fence but not more than 10 feet. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated at the work session, for what it’s worth, I brought it up, I don’t know what kind of reaction when I saw the fence and also I believe at the site visit, I didn’t mention it to Mr. Malone but someone who was there when I was leaving, I wondered with the location of your existing cement block building being, in my view, very close to the road, again it’s been there before you had it.  I thought if the whole frontage could be moved back and that building eliminated and you would have a wider swath along 9A so there’d be in my view anyway a better visual impact, maybe an improved noise impact, meaning less noise.  If you did have occasions where trucks arrived early and they started to stack up or wait for the gate to open there could be a larger pull-in area that would exist there, now there isn’t.  I just thought it would be an overall better design of your frontage but granted your existing building would have to go.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we appreciate the comment.  We’ll take that under advisement.  All I can say is you’re right, he bought the property that way and it’s not really part of the application that’s before you and as you know he did spend a fair amount of time, effort, and money improving that building and its function.  Other than the fence, which I understand you’d like that looked at by ARB is there any reason why we can’t hang the signage and put in the landscaping or do you want that looked at by ARB as well?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated they definitely look at the sign.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated just for the record the sign is exact same size, precise location, etc.  We just changed the name.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we tend to for issues like this matter we refer it to Architectural – there’s a certain symmetry and kind of coming together of what they do and I think it reflects itself when you look at the various signs in the Town of the projects that have come before us.  There’s a kind of coming together so that things aren’t so disparate.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated before we prepare material, and as Chris has asked us pdf it over to the Architectural Review Board, the Chair has indicated a desire for us to look at something other than a white fence, is there anybody else that wants to specifically comment on fence coloration or material?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded that’s what the Architectural Review Board does. 

Mr. John Bernard stated I don’t think anyone’s opposed to a white fence.  It’s just that this looks very solid and it could be broken up in a hundred different ways. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think I am opposed to – because when you brought it up I didn’t realize how far down it went.  I would be opposed to a white fence of that length especially because it is tight, there’s no slatting.  I think that is a little much when you’re driving along and you see this long, long, long white fence.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked what about the landscaping?

Mr. John Klarl responded we handle the landscaping. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated that I think we have to decide right?

Mr. John Klarl responded right, not CAAC.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated as I was mentioning to Ed we would normally have someone take a look to make sure these plants are going to survive all the salt and we don’t have that in-house expertise anymore so I don’t know if we want to get an outside person to take a quick look at this. That’s up to the Board.  I’m not a landscaper I don’t know if any of these things are really appropriate. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we could take a security also.  

Mr. Ivan Kline asked what?

Mr. John Klarl responded a security, a maintenance security for the landscaping.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know.  I can’t see why we can’t get somebody in for a couple of hours once the plan is drawn and once they show the layout that they want, have somebody come in and take a quick look at it, recommend specific kinds of shrubbery or whatever that would do well along a highly traffic…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s all I’m suggesting.  Somebody to take a quick look and comment on. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it makes sense because they’re going to spend a lot of money putting these things in and if they’re not up to the standard or up to what they need to be than they’re just going to die out and you have to replace them, and replace them, and replace them. 

Mr. David Steinmetz asked is Steve Coleman or anyone else going to be looking at the storm water basin for vegetation or anything like that?  In other words, what I’m trying to figure out is if you’re already having Steve come in and comment on something of that nature could he just look at this vegetation?  I’m not sure Ed whether that’s going to Steve or not.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked I think it will go to Steve if it hasn’t gone to him yet.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked is there any reason why it can’t?  We’ve given you a design for the storm…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes but we would just need to let you know that you’re going to have to pay for that.  As long as you’re consenting to have him take a quick look at it that’s how we would do it. 
Mr. Robert Foley asked back to the fence and the setback.  There’s no sidewalk there now.  I’ve read about plans in the future about the 9A corridor improvements.  Is that being taken into account with this plan there?  In other words if sidewalks…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated on the other side. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated they would be across the street, okay.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked are you holding an escrow from us on this?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I’ll double check.  I don’t think so. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated let us know.  We’re happy to put something in escrow.  We need that storm water basin reviewed and signed off on.  We know that so let’s get that taken care of so that the Board gets some comment back on that.  If that can be done in conjunction with the landscaping then we’re being efficient.

Mr. Robert Foley asked how are we doing this on the motion?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded have it brought back.

Mr. John Klarl responded the quest is what you’re going to approve in a landscaping plan.  You agree to defer the sign, the fence to the CAAC.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what do we think?  I would rather let somebody look at it before we actually stamp it. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated typically you approve the fence and the sign subject to the AAC and only if they can’t work it out would it have to be brought back – and then the issue with the landscaping I think you should do something similar if you trust our environmental consultants to work something out with the applicant. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded for me that’s fine.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we would appreciate that and again I underscore what I said earlier.  You still have continuing jurisdiction over this application so I’m sure if there’s something not to your liking during the installation you’re going to comment.  We would ask that you refer it to staff and allow us to work with staff and our outside consultants and we can process the application in tandem. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked should the motion state that we are approving the sign and fence subject to AAC?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked that’s part of the motion or the first whole motion?  How do you want it?  Because then we have landscaping and traffic.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded maybe we should make them separate motions.  

Mr. John Klarl stated do the first motion in the affirmative, the way you did it. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated the motion as stated in reference to the sign and fence, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated one other obvious point too is this application will still be active for many months.  If there’s something you don’t like that you see out there it can be changed. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated to refer this back for completion of a traffic study and review and approval of the landscape plan, is that correct?

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I thought the landscape we were going to do similar to the fence.  We were going to approve it subject to staff sign off on the details after having it looked up by a consultant.  

Mr. Ed Vergano stated once again if you don’t like it during the course of the application you can change it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you need to repeat it so we’re all clear on what you said.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion on the landscape plan to refer back subject to approve the landscape plan subject to review and approval of the Town consultant, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Robert Foley stated refer back for completion of the traffic study, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 24-08    c.
Application of JJB Properties Inc., for the property of Homard Prod. Co. Inc., for Site Development Plan Approval for storage of 816 vehicles on a 5.1 acre parcel of property located on the west side of Arlo Lane as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan for Curry Automotive” prepared by Joel L. Greenberg, R.A. latest revision dated December 23, 2008 (see prior PB 8-00).

Mr. John Klarl stated for the record Mr. Greenberg was here at the work session but had to leave early.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there was a site inspection on this property this past Sunday and unfortunately I could not attend that site inspection.  Is there anybody who was there who needs to comment on what you found just for the record?  If there’s no discussion and no comments on that visit then we’re going to ask for a motion to refer this back.

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this application back to staff, seconded.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated on the question I think there’s some drainage information we’re waiting for on this.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes, that needs to go over with the architect engineer about how they’re going to deal with drainage and the surface treatment for the entire property.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that was the only outstanding issue as a result of the site visit.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated when you get it back you will be looking into those drainage issues.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 11-08   d.
Application of Cortlandt Manor Holdings, LLC for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 10 lot major subdivision of a 44.81 acre parcel of property located at the end of Rome Court, as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Subdivision and Site Development Plan for Cortlandt Manor Holdings, LLC” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. dated April 22, 2010.

Mr. Kevin McManus presented himself and stated and I’m joined by Tim Cronin who is the engineer of record for the project.  As you’re aware, we’ve resubmitted the plans with the modifications to our prior submission.  We’ve reduced a couple of lots and Tim is going to actually walk through the project.  I just want to keep in mind of the 10 lot subdivision, the tenth lot is a 30.5 acre open space parcel but we are intending to be covered by a conservation easement.  I just wanted to be clear that we’re talking about 9 building lots.  We also understand that…

Mr. John Klarl asked how large is the open space?

Mr. Kevin McManus responded it’s 30.5 acres I believe.  We also recognize that we have been away for two years.  We have owners of the property who this is not their primary business.  Unfortunately they got very, very busy and this took a second priority to those other activities.  We’ve resubmitted this application.  Their intent is to proceed now with the application and address the issues and comments that have been raised.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated if you take a look at the screen you can see the plan that was submitted 2008 which shows 2 additional lots coming off of Croton Park Avenue, part of the Croton Colony.  Due to comments raised by a number of the people who have written memos to the Planning staff we’ve decided that in the long term taking those 2 lots out would likely result in a better project at least, perhaps not for the applicants, but certainly for the neighbors in the area.  The plan that’s up there now is what we’ve presented recently which shows the 9 lots.  What we’ve done is we’ve shown the steeply sloped areas with the dark being 30% and then the differing areas being a little bit less than that.  The reason I showed the slopes on this plan was for the Board to appreciate to what extent we were aware of the slopes and how we tried to really position our houses outside of the sloped areas.  It’s not perfect, there are some areas where we will be going into the slopes but it is in an area where I think we can get the grades to work without too much difficulty so that the impact of the steep slopes will be minimized.  As in this case here, which is lot #8, if we have a walk-out basement we’ll essentially take care of that downward slope, we’ll have a walk-out basement with a first floor on grade or something approaching that once we do the detailed topo or the detailed grading we’ll see exactly what we have.  That’s with the road position as it is here.  If the Board and Town engineer is concerned with this sloped area there is an opportunity to bring this road in a little bit quicker like this and be able possibly to pull this house out of that sloped area.  I, myself, prefer the roads to be a little straighter but other people would say that having a road with a little curve to it and getting the house out of the slope is a betterment.  That’s something that’s part of the SEQRA process. We can review that.  There are also some other areas of steep slopes on some of the other lots on the right side of the road; 1, 3, and 4 and I think once we go out and do the site walk you’ll see that these steeply sloped areas are a result of some of the activities that have taken place here over time as part of the quarrying out of the rock quarry.  They’re pretty much just piles of stone.  What we’d like to do ideally is, because we’ve seen a number of comments come from a number of people that are concerned about the development of this property I think it’s important that the Planning Board visit the site and get a sense as to what we’re doing and where we’re doing it and I think you will appreciate that where we’re proposing our development is in an area that is amenable to the development.  We’re not doing anything in the steeply sloped areas here and we’ve actually, where we had 2 lots nestled in here I think lots 12 and 7, and we were sort of shooting for areas where we could get some development out of those but realizing the difficulty that would entail we’ve decided to come back with the 9 lot subdivision.  Hopefully we can get the Board out there to take a look and see and appreciate what we’ve done with this plan.  

Mr. John Bernard asked Tim, just curiosity, are these on septic?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded yes they are. 

Mr. John Bernard stated looks like you’ve got septic fields on the ones down at the bottom but on the top where are they?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded these are the septic areas here and then on the other ones we’ve got septic areas here, here, here and here for the lots up the hill.  We will have to traverse through this sloped area on a temporary basis to put in a four inch pipe. 

Mr. John Bernard asked no rock in that area?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded we did some preliminary soil testing, we have soils here, this area here we’re going to likely encounter rock and possibly also for some of the houses I haven’t walked the routes for the sewer line to go down to the septic areas but that’s a gravity pipe, it doesn’t have to be 4 feet down.  I’d like to think that the potential for rock is greater here than it is on that slope but it’s something we can evaluate. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked speaking of where the septics are, where would the expansion areas come from?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded we’re showing an area that’s big enough for both primary and expansion.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked in every case obviously?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded yes.  Like in this one here, like lot 3 we’ve got a piece here and a piece here so we’ve done a fair amount of testing and remember that may look like a long, skinny piece but I suspect that’s probably 40 feet wide so you can get a decent amount of septic in that type of shape.

Mr. Robert Foley asked what about on lots 6, 7, 8 at the top end, the septic’s in the back there’s plenty of buffer there before you get into the aqueduct of the wetlands area?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded I think the aqueduct is on the other side.  The aqueduct’s to the east, 500 feet, 1,000 feet.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked Tim did you send these original plans to the City DEP?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded the plans that went to the DEP were the ones that showed the 11 buildable lots and one open space lot, but they have not seen this plan.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked do you plan on sending it to them?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded that’s something we’d like to do as part of the SEQRA review process.  I know there was a memo that the DEP sent to us back in 2008 and…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked did you ever respond to that?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded no and the reason why is many of the issues they were asking for in that report: storm water analysis, how we’re going to handle the increase in impervious area, pollutant loadings, are typically the types of things you would do say an in expanded part III and you being the lead agent if we’re going to start doing technical reports I’d like to have it come as part of the overall review and not for us to deal with say a secondary agency to us compared to the primary agency which would be you. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m not sure I…

Mr. Tim Cronin stated involved agency sorry.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m not sure I’m following this line.  There is a major letter here as far as I’m concerned.  It says there are a lot of things wrong with this project.  They don’t understand why you did this.  You need to do that etc.  You responded at some point by saying “we have received the correspondence from the New York City DEP.  The comments will be addressed as the project moves forward.”  You’ve been away for two years and it’s like you’re coming back to reintroduce the project but I don’t think that I feel comfortable with you saying “well we’ll get to it down the line, down the way.”  I think there needs to be some level of something here that we can sink our teeth into after a two-year absence.  These comments are very specific to the project.  Now, you have made some revisions but something written about the revisions and how you’ve addressed some of these issues on paper, even if it’s not a formal project, I feel I need to have something.  I don’t just want to sit around waiting until you’ve finally get to it.  That’s just my opinion. 
Mr. Kevin McManus responded we concur and we will proceed with going back to DEP with the revised plan and work with them to address what we really believe are a request for more information to show how we’re going to make this project work more than saying it doesn’t work.  They’re requesting for us to come up with areas for storm water.  They’re requesting us to prove out viability of the sewage disposal areas.  I think that’s all reasonable and we will proceed with doing that immediately before we come back to the Planning Board to ask for any further action. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think I’d like to see something concrete at this point rather than just “well, we’re going to get to it.”  If you’re planning on putting something together that we can look at and see that you’ve addressed or are in the process of addressing these things. 

Mr. Kevin McManus responded we’re willing to make a commitment that the next submission to the Planning Board would be with a plan that addresses the letter to the maximum extent that we can this time. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I would appreciate that. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff.  We will not be setting a site visit at this point.  We feel it’s too early in the process.  We’ll wait for comments to come back and revised submission and then we’ll set a date for the site visit, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 23-08    e.
Application of John P. Alfonzetti, P.E., for the property of Angelo Cipriano, for Preliminary Plat Approval and a Tree Removal Permit for a 4 lot major subdivision of 9.25 acres for property located off of Mt. Airy Road E., southeast of Joseph Wallace Drive, as shown on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Preliminary 4 Lot Subdivision Mountain View Estates” prepared by John Alfonzetti, P.E. latest revision dated April 22, 2010.

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated we were here last year regarding this 9.25 acre lot.  We’re trying to subdivide into 4 lots.  It exists now with one residence on it in one corner of it.  What we did since the last time we were here we’ve been ironing out our septic plans with the Health Department.  What we showed on the original subdivision plan was already conservative outline of the septic plans.  We showed many times more area than we actually need.  We’ve reduced that considerably.  With that we’ve also reduced the number of trees.  I think Mr. Bernard was out at the site one time.  We’ve reduced the number of trees that are going to be disturbed and cut down and we’re ready to proceed. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Madame Chair I think we agreed at the work session that this is ready for a public hearing so I would make a motion that we schedule a public hearing on this application for our June 1 meeting, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 5-10      f.
Referral from the Town Board of a proposed Draft Zoning Amendment dated February 1, 2010 with respect to changes to the Town Zoning Code Section 307-4 (Definitions), 307-14 & 15  (Table of Permitted Uses) and the addition of a new Section 307-65.5,  (Contractor’s Yards) and 307-65.6 (Specialty Trade Contractors.)

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we set a public hearing on this referral for the meeting of June the 1st, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*

CORRESPONDENCE

PB 24-00    a.
Letter dated April 19, 2010 from John Kellard, P.E. requesting 3 retroactive and 1 additional six month re-approvals of Final Plat approval for the Maple Avenue Partners Subdivision located on Maple Avenue.

Mr. John Klarl stated I recuse myself.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair I’m going to recuse myself as well. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there have been some changes to the Town Codes regarding re-approvals and late submissions.

Mr. Donald S. Mason asked they were proposed or are they in effect?  

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded they have now been adopted. 

Mr. Donald S. Mason stated 1415 Boston Post Road, Larchmont NY.  I’m the attorney for the Maple Avenue partners.  I’m here in connection with the letter which was sent.  My clients have almost finished with the project itself.  There’s only black topping that has to be done and we have our contractor Colwell Excavating working with the Town and we believe that if the issues of the item 4 are resolved than its work can be completed totally within one week and the entire project completed with respect to the ability to sign off on the plot plan.  We’ve never abandoned the project.  Basically, my clients relied upon John Kellard to get the extensions.  We didn’t know he didn’t get any of the extensions but as you see we’ve been working with the Town and we’ve never abandoned the job.  The Town’s known that we’ve been working on it and we would like to get the extension.  We might even be completed before the next meeting if we can resolve the issue of the item 4.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have several constraints on us at this point.  If the Town has passed a Code and it is now in effect we can’t just arbitrarily override it.  What we had proposed to do was to bring this to the Town Board’s attention to see in fact if they would be willing to make some level of accommodation. 

Mr. Donald S. Mason asked isn’t there a grandfather clause in that proposal?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded they’re going to have to examine that clause.  We were looking at it and a number of people, I’m not quite sure how this works with this particular situation you’re in for example.  We do have another applicant who’s in a similar situation.  We would like the Town Board to take a  look at it and see.  We’ll have to abide by whatever their final decision is but we want them to understand that in your case for example that you’re almost finished and now you’d have to go through the whole process again.  Ultimately this will end up having to happen to somebody down the line but because the Law has just passed and just gone into effect there is some sense that maybe we need a little bit more time, a couple of months or so, to get the word out to make sure that everybody gets in here and gets their things in on time.  This is what we’re proposing to do to send it back to the Town Board to ask them for some consideration of the situation. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think what’s not clear is what takes precedence.  Does the grandfathering take precedence over the other aspects of the Law and that’s what we need clarification about. 

Mr. Donald S. Mason asked what do you want to do with this particular case?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded in as much as your application is technically late, it’s very late because you’re asking for re-approvals and retroactive approvals, one more month won’t matter a whole lot.  What we’ll do is we’ll draft something and send it over to the Town Board.  Hopefully they will consider it and get it back to us in time for the June meeting but at this point I don’t think that we can do anything but that.  We can’t say “go ahead, you’ve got your re-approval.”

Mr. Donald S. Mason we could ask the Board’s take into consideration that the purposes of many of the Boards is to prevent hardship and work against the strict enforcement of the Law and we’d ask you to take that into consideration when you talk about this case. 

Mr. Ivan Kline asked can I just clarify, I don’t know that we as a practical matter can refer this to the Town Board because I don’t think a Town Board can just answer a question in terms of what does a Law mean.  I think that would be the function of the Town attorney to give advice on the Board can amend the Law if we’re asking them to do that but that’s a whole process with a public hearing and so forth. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated even if we erroneously sent it to them they would hand it off to the Town attorney but what I’m saying is it has to go outside of this Board to get some resolution because we can’t overrule what the Town Code says. 

Mr. Donald S. Mason stated there’s also as it’s been pointed out a retroactive effect with respect to the grandfather clause that would have to be resolved. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated they’ve passed a Law and we’re stuck trying to figure out how to apply it and it’s not easy but I don’t know that you can go back to them and say “how do you answer this question?” because I don’t believe the Town Board has the right, in effect, to answer that question.  I think it would have to be the Town attorney that would provide the answer. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor continued we’ll forward it to him.  That we can do.  What I’m saying to you is that you cannot walk away tonight with some sense that this is done.  It’s not done until we get some feedback from the attorney.

Mr. John Bernard asked there have been a few stop work orders on this project.  You’re talking about the project being completed what you’re talking about is the infrastructure for the project?

Mr. Donald S. Mason responded that’s right.  The roadway – a condition for signing off on the roadway.
Mr. John Bernard stated in the process of completing those there have been a few stop work orders are all those taken care of?

Mr. Donald S. Mason responded from what I understand everything’s taken care of but the only issue I understand is outstanding and that’s what our contractor is working on is the item 4 Resolution because they wanted a certain test on that form.

Mr. John Bernard asked and what is that?

Mr. Donald S. Mason responded item 4 on the blacktop.

Mr. John Bernard stated I don’t understand.  They’re waiting for what?

Mr. Donald S. Mason responded the municipality wanted confirmation of certain aspects of the material and if the material is approved to their satisfaction we can complete the roadway. 

Mr. John Bernard stated but item 4 is a State approved material.  It’s already approved.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated they used crushed concrete as item 4 and we asked them to support that with information from the DOT.

Mr. John Bernard stated the supplier should be able to submit certification.  Item 4: crushed concrete.  Is it approved?

Mr. Robert Cowell Jr. responded not on DOT standards as of yet.  I dropped off a sample today at a Fairview testing laboratory in Stony Point and the granular substance matches all of the analyticals for that are all matching to a New York State DOT item 4.  

Mr. John Bernard stated they have to run their set of tests and come back with it. 
Mr. Robert Cowell Jr. responded that’s all been done.  The only test we’re waiting on now is the chemical test and the…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I think a material hardened in this test also.

Mr. Robert Cowell Jr. continued I’m the excavating contractor on the site. 

Mr. John Bernard stated what we were talking about prior to you arriving was I was asking if the reasons for the stop work orders that have taken place on this project were taken care of and I think that’s where the contractor was operating on the site before you. 

Mr. Robert Cowell Jr. responded yes. 

Mr. John Bernard asked so you didn’t have any stop work orders?

Mr. Robert Cowell Jr. responded he hasn’t been there since September of ’09.

Mr. John Bernard asked have all those conditions been taken care of?

Mr. Robert Cowell Jr. responded yes.

Mr. John Bernard stated of primary concern to me is that in the process of that work that was done incorrectly and had to be almost all removed and replaced, there was an awful lot of siltation to the wetland and the vernal pool that was on that site and I’m just wondering if any of it survived.

Mr. Donald S. Mason responded I’m not sure of what was silted over prior to my starting but we came there, we renewed the silt fence.
Mr. John Bernard stated I’m sure you did.  I’m aware of your work and I’m sure things are a lot more kosher at this point.  What I’m concerned about is the damages that have been done and can’t be undone over the previous couple of years.  It’s a great concern because this was a really sensitive site and we kind of bent over backwards to allow the 4 houses to be built on this project and as I remember it was not an easy process to get approval on this site and promises were made that it was going to be done correctly and looked after and it was not.  

Mr. Gjoko Skreli stated I am one of the partners.  The previous contractor started the job.  Apparently he did not do any further damage anywhere except for the road where he dug for the main water line prior to establishing the road elevations.  There was no damage done to any of the sites in either direction.  He just stood there and killed time with his machines keeping them there back and forth. 

Mr. John Bernard stated if I may.  I was at that site several times over the process of watching that whole area be abused and I watched when storm waters were coming down and washing over areas that they shouldn’t have been exposed but they were and I watched the siltation build up in the waterways and also in the wetlands that are on that site.  I watched it. 

Mr. Skreli responded we fired the gentleman. 

Mr. John Bernard stated I understand you took care of it eventually but my concern is that the damages were done that cannot be undone.  You’re not going to go in and re-filter the wetlands.  I know you’re not.  I don’t know how you would do it anyway and so my concern is that that damage is done even though promises were made at the beginning and a 1 ½ or 2 years went by and I don’t know what we do about it now but I’m not a happy guy about it.  

Mr. Skreli responded trust me we paid a huge price for it. 

Mr. John Bernard stated whatever you paid was up to you.  That’s a personal problem that you have.  We all paid it permanently in perpetuity we paid.  We all paid.  That’s the point. 

Mr. Skreli responded we took over and I’ve been there observing the site all the time myself.

Mr. John Bernard stated but when this originally came up you and your partners, as I remember it was “brothers, sisters, cousins a family operation and we’re all going to move into these houses and we really need those 4 houses because it’s a family operation.  We’re all going to move in there.  We understand it’s a sensitive site.  We’re going to watch this like a hawk.  We’re going to watch like a sentry crow sitting in the tallest tree.”  It didn’t happen. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated John is correct.  There were violations to the site.  To my knowledge those violations have been addressed.  What we can do is have our environmental consultant Steve Coleman visit the site just to evaluate these issues to make sure that everything is copasetic.  We do have a maintenance security.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re awaiting feedback from an attorney.

Mr. Donald S. Mason then we’ll hear from your Board.
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, when you should come back at that point because we don’t really know at this point. 

Mr. Skreheli stated we’ll work with Ed and Chris there. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ll refer it back to our staff and they’ll be in touch at some point. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we refer this back to staff, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 42-95    b.
Letter dated April 21, 2010 from Anthony Maccarini, Esq. requesting Planning Board approval for a change of use from the former Hollywood Video Store to a Sushi & Hibachi Restaurant located at 2084 East Main Street (Route 6).

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chair I move that we schedule a public hearing for this change of use at our next meeting and request that the applicant get with our staff and create a site plan.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we have a site plan.  What I think that they would need to do is maybe further explain, and correct me if I’m wrong, but further explain in maybe photographs or details or letters that either the existing dumpster’s sufficient or they need another one or they need additional mechanicals on the roof.  Those aren’t really a site plan.  The dumpster’s a site plan. 

Mr. John Bernard stated no they’re not site plans and as Steve pointed out at the work session the exhaust alone for a restaurant of this type, an hibachi restaurant you may need to install rotoclones or something so that you don’t have fat deposits on the rooftop melting through the roof membrane. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think the Planning Board wants some more detail on the restaurant operation. 

Mr. Tony Maccarini stated I’m the one that submitted the letter.  I’m representing the applicant here.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we had discussed on the phone the idea of that the Planning Board may want a public hearing given the fact that it is quite a change of use from a video store and it was discussed at the work session and that’s what the Board desires.  We have an approved site plan in which they got a copy of and the floor plan of the restaurant which they have a copy of but there are issues regarding, even though I believe the cover letter states there are no changes, but I think that they want more information; mechanicals on the roof and additional dumpsters, site lighting and odor control, information like that given the fact that the restaurant is going to have different impacts on the adjacent property owners.  Our new Code requires that the applicant send out the letters.  I’ll work with you on that.  We used to send them out but now the applicant has to send them out. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked were there any issues on parking on this?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded the applicant is aware that this is a significant parking variance needed.
Mr. Tony Maccarini responded this applicant runs 2 other restaurants.  One in Carmel at the Putnam Plaza and one at Fishkill on Route 9 which used to be the old Denny’s.  I was actually there today and I counted the seating in that facility and that Fishkill operation seats between 145 and 160 people which is almost twice what this one will.  They have 67 parking spaces there and I asked the owner and that seemed to be more than adequate.  They told me they never have a problem there.  They have a 10 yard dumpster out back which they empty once a week but they also have a separate dumpster to recycle the cardboard.  I also spoke with the adjoining use here ‘Home and Hearth’. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I think this should all come in at the public hearing.  I think we have a motion to schedule a public hearing, I’d like to second it and let’s get a public hearing because frankly you’re just going to have to repeat this in front of whoever shows up at the public hearing.  I’m sorry to cut you off but I just think it’s more efficient to schedule the public hearing and then we’ll hear all about it. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just to make sure that he has an idea that we’re going to need additional information.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I think we’ve given that to him now. 

Mr. Tony Maccarini asked would that be on June 1st as well?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes. 

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 32-94    c.
Letter dated April 22, 2010 from Evan Liaskos requesting Planning Board approval for a new freestanding sign for the Cortlandt Colonial Restaurant located at 5714 Albany Post Road.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair I move to approve the sign subject to Architectural Review Committee approval and DOTs approval for placement of the sign on the property, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 17-84    d.
Letter (received by the Planning Division on April 23, 2010) from Ferhun Ogunc requesting Planning Board approval for a change of use from the former Extra Fuels gas station to the “Green Market” located at 1950 East Main Street (Route 6).

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Madame Chair I move that we schedule a public hearing on this application for June 1 and I think we’d like to request that the applicant some type of a sketch plan showing exactly how the applicant intends to use the site including the parking. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we have an approved site…

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc stated we would like to use that gas station as a green market.  This is only temporarily.  They removed the gas tanks, pumps, everything from the station and it used to be a grocery store.  We’re not going to change anything externally.  We’re just going to build fruit stands, vegetable stands. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked I guess the question is we would like to know what’s going to be outside and what’s going to be inside if you were in fact planning to put anything outside or is everything contained within the current convenience store?

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc responded part of it is going to be inside and we would like to put some fruit and vegetables outside and if you need a permit for that?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I guess if you could just sketch out and just give us some indication of how far out it’s going to go, how far from the store.  That’s what we’re interested in.

Mr. John Klarl stated in addition, there’s another gas station not far from this one and where there was an issue before the Zoning Board very recently about outdoor storage and outdoor storage of merchandise for sale.  So, I would recommend that you talk with Code Enforcement about any plan that you have to make sure that what you plan to do you’re permitted to do.  Specifically, this gas station had under the canopy and someone said that was inside storage, that was the argument, but they said that was outside storage.  They had propane tanks, they had cartons of soda, they had yuppie wood and all that type of stuff they said was prohibited outdoor storage and sales.  You might want to talk to Code Enforcement about your thoughts for this property. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you John because I was just about to bring that up.  You should really talk with somebody before you actually submit a drawing.  Get a clear sense of what’s allowable.  Put the drawing in and then talk to our folk and then come because otherwise it’s just going to get bogged down.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s the same thing that happened on the application prior.  We have to do a public hearing which means you have to notify the adjacent property owners.  I can help you with that.  I do the letter.  I do it all but you mail it out.  It will be just the immediately adjacent property owners but prior to that we have an approved site plan back from 1984 that shows the gas station but what the Planning Board wants is more information about how you’re going to operate there and that can be in a form of a sketch plan.  You’ve submitted some photographs, maybe some more sketches, more information, maybe if you can take a picture of another place that has similar information and submit that but you have to get in touch with my office.  

Mr. Ferhun Ogunc asked we could start selling from inside?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded not until after the public hearing and then the Planning Board decides whether to approve it.  The public hearing will be in June and then I guess it would be up to the Planning Board, I assume we would do a Resolution and it wouldn’t be approved until July. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I think I made a motion to schedule a public hearing for June 1, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
Mr. Ed Vergano stated on question it’s advisable to have a professional engineer mark up your site plan to show where the parking of the facility will be located. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the old site plan from 1984 shows parking spaces out there.  I believe currently there are no delineated parking spaces on that site.  It doesn’t show any parking.  You should have an engineer once again talk with us to sketch something up to show if someone wanted to come in and buy fruits and vegetables; how would they get into the site?  Where would they park? That type of stuff.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated rather than just mark up somebody else’s plan you’d usually retain an engineer to prepare a new plan to show that information.
PB 43-06    e.
Letter dated April 22, 2010 from Ron Wegner, P.E. requesting the 3rd six-month time extension of Preliminary Plat approval for the Ryan Subdivision located on Watch Hill Road. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 30-10 approving the extensions, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 


*



*



*




ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Madame Chair I move to adjourn.
Next Meeting: TUESDAY, JUNE 1, 2010

I, SYLVIE MADDALENA, a Transcriptionist for the Town of Cortlandt as a subcontractor, do hereby certify that the information provided in this document is an accurate representation of the Planning Board meeting minutes to the best of my ability.
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X 

SYLVIE MADDALENA

Dated: July 15, 2010
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